
January 18, 2022 

Memorandum from President Murdaugh 

The District Board of Trustees of 
Tallahassee Community College 
444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, FL  32304 

The following meeting Agenda and items requiring approval by the District 
Board of Trustees is provided for your use at the Tuesday, January 18, 2022 
Board Meeting. 

The meeting will be held at the Center for Innovation, 300 West Pensacola 
Street, Tallahassee FL. 

Should you have any questions, please contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 



Agenda 
District Board of Trustees 

Center for Innovation 
300 West Pensacola Street 

Tallahassee, FL  32301 
Tuesday, January 18, 2022 

Business Meeting & Workshop – 2:30 PM 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
            i.         Moment of Silence 
            ii.        Pledge of Allegiance  

COMMENTS 
            i.         Board Chair 
            ii.        Board Members  
            iii.       President  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. November 15, 2021 Meeting 

Request Board approve minutes as presented. 

INFORMATION AND NEWS ITEMS 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

PRESENTATIONS 

NEW BUSINESS 

Approval of Consent Agenda 

The consent agenda format is an organization process for meetings that allow the governing board to focus their 
time and attention on action items that require more elaboration, information, and/or discussion.  The intent of the 
consent agenda is to support efficiency and effectiveness of the meeting. 

If a trustee has a question or plans to cast a negative vote regarding a specific recommendation, then the 
trustee/trustees need to acknowledge their intention to the Chair.  This action item will be considered in the 
regular order of business as an individual action item. 

Those action items that the trustees plan to approve without further question or discussion will remain on the 
consent agenda.  Upon the final determination of the consent agenda, a motion, second to the motion, and 
unanimous approval of the Board of Trustees is needed to approve the action items.  Upon approval of the 
consent agenda, the Board of Trustees will proceed with the remainder of the agenda. 

2. Human Resource Report 

Approve the report as presented. 

3. Attorney Invoice – Bryant Miller Olive (November 2021) 

Authorize payment of invoices as presented. 

  



4. Sponsored Programs – Fiscal Agent 

Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

5. Sponsored Programs – Provider 

Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

6. Architect Invoices 

Authorize payment of architectural invoices as presented. 

TCC Foundation 

7. TCC Foundation Update 

None required.  Report provided for information only. 

Academic Affairs 

8. 2021-2022 Amended Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement with County 

School Boards and Public Charter Schools 

The Board approves the articulation agreement. 

9. 2021-2022 Amended Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement with Private 
Schools 

The Board approves the articulation agreement. 

10. Gadsden Technical Institute and Tallahassee Community College MOU 

The Board approve the agreement with Gadsden Technical Institute. 

11. Lively Technical College and Tallahassee Community College MOU 

The Board approve the agreement with Lively Technical College. 

Administrative Services 

12. Policy Manual Changes 

Approve revision of College policies as presented. 

13. Fund Analysis -  

For information only, no Board action required. 

14. Annual SREF Fire, Sanitation and Casualty Inspection 

Approve the annual SREF Fire, Sanitation and Casualty Inspection reports in 
accordance with Florida Statutes. 

15. RFQ 2022-02 Award Recommendation 

Approve the recommended construction manager at risk, Mad Dog Construction, 
for the Student Union 1st Floor Renovations project. 

  



16. RFQ 2022-03 Award Recommendation 

Approve the recommended construction manager at risk, Allstate Construction, 
Inc., for the TCC Ghazvini Center for Healthcare Education Nursing Simulation 
Lab Renovations project. 

17. Construction Status Report 

Presented as an information item only. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

WORKSHOP 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

NEXT MEETING DATE 

February 21, 2022                              Location:  Ghazvini Center for Healthcare Education 

ADJOURNMENT 

 



November 15, 2021  Page 1 of 3 

Minutes 
District Board of Trustees 

Tallahassee Community College 
444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, FL  32304 
November 15, 2021 

Business Meeting – 2:30 PM 
 
The November 2021 District Board of Trustees meeting was called to order by Chair Grant at 
approximately 2:30 p.m. 
 
Members Present:  Chair Grant, Trustees, Lamb, Messersmith, Moore, Stevens and Ward 

Absent:  Trustee Kilpatrick Via phone/Zoom:  None 
Others Present:  President Murdaugh, Candice Grause, Lenda Kling, Anthony Jones, Kalynda Holton, 
Nyla Davis, Bobby Jones, Kim Moore, Heather Mitchell, Amanda Clements, Craig Knox, Calandra Stringer, 
Melinda Rodgers, Amy Bradbury, Angela Long, Lei Wang, Pamela Johnston, Frank Mix, Nick Vick and 
Donmetrie Clark 
 
COMMENTS 
i.         Board Chair Grant asked everyone to stand for a moment of silence and the pledge of allegiance.  
He indicated the TCC Model UN team recently won awards at an event in Washington, D.C., Chuck Moore 
was recently hired as the Director of Athletics and TCC Workforce Development is a finalist for the 
Bellwether Award. 
ii.        Board Members – Trustee Lamb shared the swearing in ceremony was very special. Trustee 
Messersmith commented on the great support from the other law enforcement agencies and talked about 
the five-mile track at Wakulla Environmental Institute, including where the tiny houses will be located.  
iii.       President Murdaugh shared Nyla Davis is one of Tallahassee’s 25 Women You Need to Know. He 
thanked Trustee Messersmith for joining them at the recent President’s Leadership Institute and Trustee 
Moore for the program presented to students. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTE 

1. October 18, 2021 Meeting 
Request Board approve minutes as presented. 
MOTION: Trustee Moore  SECOND: Trustee Stevens 

  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
INFORMATION AND NEWS ITEMS   
VP Moran presented news clips for the Tallahassee Science Festival, Cleaver and Cork fundraiser, 
swearing in ceremony for TCC Police Chief, nursing program, Eagle Connections, Holocaust Education 
Week, Eagle View Student Vlog, etc. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
None 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
VP Mitchell announced a $200,000 donation for workforce development from an anonymous donor.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 

Approval of Consent Agendas 
  2. Human Resources Report 

Approve the report as presented. 
3. Attorney Invoice – Bryant Miller Olive (September and October 2021) 
 Authorize payment of invoices as presented. 
4. Sponsored Programs – Fiscal Agent 
 Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 
5. Sponsored Programs – Provider 
 Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 
6. Architect Invoices 
 Authorize payment of architectural invoices as presented.  



November 15, 2021  Page 2 of 3 

Motion was made to approve the consent agenda. 
MOTION: Trustee Ward  SECOND: Trustee Stevens 

  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

TCC Foundation 
7. TCC Foundation Update 
VP Mitchell shared information on donations and upcoming events. 

None required.  Report provided for information only.  
 
8. TCC Foundation – Gift Acceptance 
VP Mitchell shared information on a gift received. 

Accept gift as presented. 
MOTION: Trustee Stevens SECOND: Trustee Moore 

  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Administrative Services 
9. Fund Analysis – October 

For information only, no Board action required. 
 
10. Construction Status Report 

Presented as an information item only. 
 

11. Direct Support Organization Audit Reports 
 For information only. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
WORKSHOP 
President Murdaugh shared this will be the first of three workshops on board policy. VP Wills recognized 
the vendor, Neola. She indicated Renae Tolson has handled this comprehensive review of all policies. She 
reviewed the process which used templates, subject matter experts, legal counsel, an equity committee 
and a policy team. 
 
She shared the future policy adoption process and said we will be looking at governance, property, 
operations and work schedules today – with a vote on these policies in January.  She referenced the chart 
provided that is an overview of old compared to new policies.  She indicated the notebook includes all the 
policies with underlines and strikethroughs, including the new policies. 
 
She provided a broad overview of the new policies and highlighted some items she felt might be of more 
interest to the Trustees. Trustee Stevens verified these documents will be updated with any new legislative 
changes before they vote on them in January.   
 
PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
President Murdaugh presented a request for the January meeting to be moved to the Center for Innovation.  

MOTION: Trustee Stevens SECOND: Trustee Ward 
  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Attorney Craig Knox said currently it appears in January the college may be required, based upon federal 
rule, to implement a vaccine mandate. He indicated we would fall under this new requirement, since we 
have government contracts or a contract like relationship. He said this would mean all employees (with 
some exceptions) need to be fully vaccinated by January 18th. He shared there are no provided penalties, 
however they will probably use the process they currently use. 
 
He shared currently Florida is seeking a temporary injunction and we do not currently know exactly what 
will happen. Trustee Stevens confirmed this would only apply to those students who are in a work study 
status, asking if they could continue to get updates. 
 



November 15, 2021  Page 3 of 3 

President Murdaugh said currently we have encouraged personal responsibility. He stated since we don’t 
meet in December and the college is closed for two weeks, the deadline will approach quickly. Attorney 
Knox stated the federal guideline has more specific guidelines. Trustee Stevens said the state statute will 
also have some extensive penalties for violations. Trustee Stevens asked for an update before the end of 
the year, with Trustee Moore indicating it would be helpful to know what our sister schools are doing. 
 
President Murdaugh stated VP Rowland would like to know which Trustees are planning to attend 
commencement. 
 
 
 
NEXT MEETING DATE 
Tuesday, January 18, 2022  Location:  Center for Innovation 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
Meeting adjourned at approximately 3:44 p.m.   
 
 
 
Minutes approved at the regular meeting of the District Board of Trustees on January 18, 2022. 
 
  
 
            
W. Eric Grant     Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
Chair      President 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
   
SUBJECT: Human Resource Report 

 
 
Item Description 
This item request Board approval for personnel actions. 
 
Overview and Background 
Pursuant to College Policy 04-06 and 04-17, the College brings forth a request to approve 
appointments, separations and outside employment.  
 
Past Actions by the Board 
Personnel actions are taken to the District Board of Trustees monthly.  The Board has not 
addressed this item previously. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
This item is funded by the 2021-2022 Operating Budget. 
 
Recommended Action 
Approve the report as presented. 

 



Name Position Department Effective Date

Suzi Baugh Director of Integrated Marketing Communications and Marketing November 29, 2021
Chuck Moore Athletics Director Athletics December 1, 2021

Name Position Department Effective Date
Celia Cassels Staff Assistant President's Office October 18, 2021
Phillip Register Campus Police Officer Campus Police November 1, 2021
April Clayton Custodial Worker Facilities November 1, 2021
Michael Wallace Maintenance Technician I Facilities November 1, 2021
Deidra Green Student Activities Coordinator Student Life November 1, 2021
Ta'Niyah Brown Call Center Representative Call Center November 2, 2021
Thomas Bevis Emergency Management and Safety Coordinator Campus Police November 8, 2021
Chana Foster Facilities Operations Superintendent Facilities November 16, 2021
Steven Berger Public Safety Officer Campus Police November 16, 2021

Name Position Department Effective Date
Natasha Williams Nursing Faculty HCP November 16, 2021

Name Position Department Effective Date
Kathy Keiffer CSP Contract Support Specialist DOE - Charter Schools November 1, 2021

Katoyra Cox Career Development Specialist
Compass 100 DOC - South 
Florida Reception Center November 1, 2021

Steven Lewis Career Development Specialist
Compass 100 - Reception and 
Medical Center November 1, 2021

Donnie Pickford Technical Educator Instructor, Carpentary DOC - Vocational Training December 1, 2021
Cynthia Scott Career and Technical Education Reading Specialist DOC - Vocational Training December 1, 2021

Name Position Department Effective Date Prior Position
None to Report

Name Position Department Enrollment Date End Period 
None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date Separation Type
Sierra Anderson Director of CTE Outreach and Recruitment Workforce Development October 29, 2021 Resigned
Cindy Wommack Office Manager, Facilities Facilities November 5, 2021 Resigned
Lonny Luttrell Custodial Worker Facilities November 12, 2021 Resigned
Mercedes Provitt Call Center Representative Call Center November 12, 2021 Dismissed
Jill Hanks Nursing Faculty Nursing November 18, 2021 Resigned

Drop Retiree Participants (All Employees) 

Separations (All Employees) 

Re-Appointments (All Employees)

Original Appointments - Executive, Administrative, Managerial & Professional 

Original Appointments - Classified Staff

Original Appointments - Faculty 

Original Appointments -  Contracts & Grants 



Laura Mackey Career Development Specialist
Compass 100 DOC - Suwanee 
C.I. November 18, 2021 Resigned

Brenda Gikunda Staff Assistant Workforce Development November 19, 2021 Resigned

Janet Maconi Learning Consultant Manager
DJJ - Contracts, Finance and 
Travel November 19, 2021 Resigned

Rita Williams Senior Custodian FPSI - Custodial November 29, 2021 Deceased
Bryon Todd Computer Programming Faculty Computer Networking November 30, 2021 Retired
Candice Mills Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC - Gulf  C.I. November 30, 2021 Resigned

Cheryl Levene Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC Hardee C.I. December 1, 2021 Resigned
Jackelyn Baldwin Program Specialist DOE - McKay Scholarship December 2, 2021 Resigned

Kayla Ealum Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC - Walton C.I. December 3, 2021 Resigned

Sarah Skidmore Special Education Assistant Compass 100 DOC - Charlotte C.I. December 3, 2021 Resigned

Name Position Department Employer Position
Carla Bell Custodian Facilities Next Level Housekeeper

April Clayton Custodian Facilities
Department of Children and 
Families Volunteer Specialist

Brian Kupfer Professor Academic Affairs Grand Canyon University Faculty Coordinator

Name Position Department Office Position
None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date Prior Position

Octavia Ash Program Logistics Coordinator Workforce Development November 1, 2021 Career Development Specialist
Chiquita Lockwoord Campus Police Officer Campus Police November 1, 2021 OPS
Karla Ramirez Program Specialist DOE - McKay Scholarship November 8, 2021 OPS
John Cummings Campus Police Sergeant Campus Police November 8, 2021 Campus Police Officer

Adria Gumbel Pathways to Career Opportunities Program Specialist Workforce Development November 8, 2021
Director of Special Projects and 
Innovation

Angie Cherry Nursing Faculty HCP November 15, 2021 Adjunct
Gaynell Brown Nursing Clinical Faculty HCP November 15, 2021 Adjunct
Brittany Christie Staff Assistant Athletics December 1, 2021 OPS

Reclassifications (All Employees)

Outside Employment Requests (All Employees) 

Seeking to Hold Political Office Requests (All Employees)



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
  
SUBJECT: Attorney Invoice – Bryant Miller Olive (November 2021) 

 
 
Item Description 
Request for approval to pay invoices from Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. for legal services provided 
related to collective bargaining process and related to Faculty labor relations. 
  
Overview and Background 
The College engaged Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. for representation during the collective 
bargaining process. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board of Trustees approved the agreement for these services at the September 19, 2016 
Board Meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Funding is budgeted in Fund 1, the Current Unrestricted Fund.  The current amount due is 
$1,800.00 for November 2021. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize payment of invoices as presented. 

 
 



Barbara K. Wills
Chief Business Officer, Vice President for Administrative 
Services
Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, Florida  32304

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

December 7, 2021
76851

25480.006

For professional services rendered in connection with Tallahassee 
Community  College - Labor and Employment - UFF Bargaining

Purchase Order No. PO-014014

Statement of Legal Services

Hours

11/03/2021 JCC Review union proposals 0.50

11/12/2021 JCC Review revisions to language 0.90

11/12/2021 JCC Attend UFF negotiations 2.50

11/12/2021 DMH Analyze and revise proposals; review emails 0.40

11/12/2021 DMH Prepare for and attend bargaining 1.10

11/22/2021 JCC Review draft / collective bargaining agreement 0.50

11/22/2021 JCC Review correspondence 0.30

11/22/2021 DMH Review and reply to email / policies 0.10

11/22/2021 DMH Review and reply to emails / collective bargaining agreement 0.10

11/22/2021 DMH Review collective bargaining agreement language 0.80

Current Services 7.20 $1,800.00

Recapitulation

Timekeeper Hours Rate Total

James C. Crosland 4.70 $250.00 $1,175.00

Denise M. Heekin 2.50 $250.00 $625.00

Payments

11/23/2021 Payment ACH rec'd 11/23/21 Invoice 76219 2,475.00

11/23/2021 Payment ACH rec'd 11/23/21 Invoice 76442 5,289.47



7,764.47

Total Current Work $1,800.00

Previous Balance Due $0.00

Balance Due $1,800.00

Please Reference Client Number On Checks And Wire Transfers

Mail Checks to:
1545 Raymond Diehl Road, Suite 300

Tallahassee, FL  32308
850-222-8611           FEIN 59-1315801

Send wire transfers to Capital City Bank, ABA #063100688
for credit to Bryant Miller Olive, Account #2132834901

Thank you for your business

Page: 2

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

December 07, 2021
76851

25480.006
Tallahassee Community College



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
   
SUBJECT: Sponsored Programs – Fiscal Agent 

 
 
Item Description 
This item requests that the Board approve the receipt of funding for the listed projects. 
 
Overview and Background 
The following are recommended for approval. 
 
I. Receipt, Amendment, Extension of Resources  
Florida Education Foundation – Florida Civics and Debate Initiative FY2022 
This award provides funding to support the vision and fulfillment of the mission of the 
Florida Civics and Debate Initiative.  The amount of this award is $140,000, with an indirect 
cost rate of 5%.  The funding period is from date of execution through 6/30/2022. 
 
 
II. Commitments, Expenditures, Contracts for Service 
None at this time. 

 
Past Actions by the Board 
None at this time. 

 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The above projects are established in Fund 2, Restricted Accounts. The total indirect 
anticipated from the awards is $6,666.67. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
   
SUBJECT: Sponsored Programs – Provider 

 
 
Item Description 
This item requests that the Board approve the receipt of funding for the listed projects. 
 
Overview and Background 
The following are recommended for approval. 
 
I. Receipt, Amendment, Extension of Resources  
 
Florida Department of Corrections - Compass 100 - Amendment 1 - 3 
These amendments increased the award by $50,882.44 for training cost, changed the OPS 
Coordinator to a fulltime position, and restructured the correctional facilities locations due to 
temporary closures.  The total amount of this award is $2,223,495.86. 
 
Office of the Florida Attorney General – Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) Grant and 
Amendment 1 
This award and amendment provide support for a victim’s advocate position. The amount of 
this award is $55,518, with an indirect cost rate of 0%. The grant period is from 10/1/21 
through 9/30/22.  
 
Florida Department of Education - Perkins State Leadership – General TCC-CTE Outreach 
and Recruitment FY21/22 Amendment 1.   
This amendment reduces the amount of the award by $104,475 due to position vacancy.  
The reduction allows FDOE to reallocate funding.  The total amount of this award is 
$300,563. 
 
Florida Department of Education - Strengthening Career & Technical Education for the 21st 
Century Act CTE, Entrepreneurship Education & Training (EET) - Amendment 4 
This amendment provides a no-cost extension through November 2021. The award 
amount, deliverables and budget remain the same. 



 
Florida Department of Education – Adult Education and Family Literacy for Leon County  
This award supports general adult education services, as well as literacy education for 
limited English proficient populations in Leon County. The award is for $177,683 including 
an indirect cost rate of 5%. The funding period is from 7/1/21 through 6/30/22. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Adult Education and Family Literacy for Gadsden 
County  
This award supports general adult education services, as well as literacy education for 
limited English proficient populations in Gadsden County. The award is for $152,152 
including an indirect cost rate of 5%. The funding period is from 7/1/21 through 6/30/22. 
 
Leon County - City of Tallahassee Blueprint Intergovernmental Agency 
This award was secured by the TCC Foundation to provides funding for the athletic facility 
enhancements.  The award amount is $1 million, with an indirect cost rate of 0%.  The 
funding period is from date of execution until spent. 
 
City of Tallahassee - CHSP - ASPIRE Capital Region 21-22 Accelerating Student 
Performance Into Realms of Excellence (ASPIRE) 
This award provides support for the collective impact approach to leverage and align 
stakeholders to improve educational access and equity. The award amount is $20,000 with 
an indirect cost rate of 0%.  The funding period is from 10/1/21 through 9/30/22. 
 
Florida Department of Education - Division of Early Learning VPK Education Program 
Support 
This award provides staffing, consulting, and special projects services as assigned to the 
Division of Early Learning (DEL) to accomplish the tasks developed and issued by DEL for 
the planning and overseeing of projects related to legislative changes and the Voluntary 
Prekindergarten Education Program. The amount of this award is $313,564.65 with an 
indirect cost rate of 5%.  The award period is 12/6/21 through 8/31/23. 
 
II. Commitments, Expenditures, Contracts for Service 
None at this time. 

 
Past Actions by the Board 
Florida Department of Corrections - Compass 100 
Initial award was approved at the August 2021 Board of Trustees meeting.   
 
Florida Department of Education - Perkins State Leadership – General TCC-CTE Outreach 
and Recruitment FY21/22 Amendment 1.   
Initial award was approved at the October 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Education - Strengthening Career & Technical Education for the 21st 
Century Act CTE, Entrepreneurship Education & Training (EET) - Amendment 4 
Amendment 3 was approved at the August 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Office of the Florida Attorney General – Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) Grant  
This is an annual renewal. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Adult Education and Family Literacy for Leon County  
This award is an annual renewal. 



 
Florida Department of Education – Adult Education and Family Literacy for Gadsden County  
This award is an annual renewal. 
 
City of Tallahassee - CHSP - ASPIRE Capital Region 21-22 Accelerating Student 
Performance Into Realms of Excellence (ASPIRE) 
This award is an annual renewal. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The above projects are established in Fund 2, Restricted Accounts. The total indirect 
anticipated from the new awards is $35,263.33. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
 ______________________ 
SUBJECT: Architect Invoices 

 
 
Item Description 
This item requests that the Board approve the architect invoices submitted for the months of 
November and December 2021.  
 
Overview and Background 
The College is now under contract with five architectural firms; Architects | Lewis + Whitlock 
PA, BKJ, Inc. Architecture, Clemons, Rutherford & Associates, Inc., DAG Architects Inc., and 
Fitzgerald Collaborative Group, LLC to provide architectural and engineering services for 
projects at all sites and counties. To ensure quality, the five firms will be assigned projects on 
a rotational basis with standardized hourly fees. 
 
Architects I Lewis + Whitlock, PA - $0.00 
BKJ, Inc. Architecture - $74,320.00 
Clemons, Rutherford & Associates, Inc. - $0.00 
DAG Architects, Inc. - $31,325.00 
Fitzgerald Collaborative Group, LLC - $16,300.90 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board last authorized architect invoices at the November 15, 2021 meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Funds for minor projects and Master Plans are available from the Capital Improvement fees. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize payment of architectural invoices as presented. 
 

 



INVOICE NO. 5

TO:  Tallahassee Community College Page:   1   of   1   Pages

        ATTN: Accounts Payable

        444 Appleyard Drive TCC Purchase Order No.:   PO‐014007

        Tallahassee, Florida 32304‐2895

Project Name:        

FROM:  BKJ Inc. Architecture

              1621 Physicians Drive

              Tallahassee, Florida 32308 Date: 11/16/21

LESS

PERCENT PREVIOUSLY AMOUNT DUE

SERVICE TOTAL FEE COMPLETE AMOUNT DUE BILLED THIS INVOICE

BASIC SERVICES

Phase 3‐ Advanced Schematic Design 12,955.00$      100% 12,955.00$      12,955.00$      ‐$                        

Phase 4‐ Design Development 47,520.00$      100% 47,520.00$      47,520.00$      ‐$                        

Phase 5‐ 50% Construction Documents 38,020.00$      100% 38,020.00$      38,020.00$      ‐$                        

Phase 6‐ 100% Construction Documents 44,260.00$      100% 44,260.00$      ‐$                  44,260.00$           

Phase 7‐ Permitting/Bid 13,905.00$      0% ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                        

Phase 8‐ Construction Administration 32,460.00$      0% ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                        

Reimbursable Expenses 250.00$            0% ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                        

ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Energy Forms (required) 800.00$            100% 800.00$            ‐$                  800.00$                 

Existing Conditions Drawings (required) 3,300.00$        100% 3,300.00$        3,300.00$        ‐$                        

Commissioning‐ Lighting (required) 3,000.00$        0% ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                        

Commissioning‐ Mechanical (TBD) 5,000.00$        0% ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                        

Record Drawings (optional) 1,500.00$        0% ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                        

ADDITIONAL SERVICES No. 1

Pre‐Tab Services 10,505.00$      100% 10,505.00$      10,505.00$      ‐$                        

ADDITIONAL SERVICES No. 2

IT/ AV/ Security 20,330.00$      100% 20,330.00$      ‐$                  20,330.00$           

ADDITIONAL SERVICES No. 3

2nd Floor additional scope of work 8,930.00$        100% 8,930.00$        ‐$                  8,930.00$              

GRAND TOTALS 242,735.00$      186,620.00$    112,300.00$    74,320.00$           

$74,320.00

Please remit payment to the following address:

BKJ, Inc. Architecture

1621 Physicians Drive

Tallahassee, FL 32308

Student Union (SU‐ bldg #35)                                       

Lobby/1st Floor Renovations

THE PRESENT STATUS OF THE ACCOUNT IS AS FOLLOWS:

  Total due Architect/Engineer

Page 1 of 2



CERTIFIED TRUE AND CORRECT BY:

(Signature of Principal)          (Typed Name and Title)

Thank you for your business. Please do not hesitate to call me if you have any questions. We appreciate the opportunity to 

provide architectural services to your organization. 

Bonnie Davenport AIA, President

Page 2 of 2



Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America
Federal ID: 59-1141270
Tax Exemption ID: 85-80-125307-72C8

Change Order

Purchase Order Number PO-014007 - 2

Purchase Order Date 07/09/2021

Payment Terms Net 30

Requestor Cindy Wommack

Phone Number (850) 201-6200

 

Page 1 of 2

Purchasing & General Services Director

Supplier:

BKJ, Inc.
1621 Physicians Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32308
United States of America

Ship To:

Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America

Comments:

“Change Order#2 - Increasing PO by $8,930.00 for Additional 
Services #3. New PO total is $242,735.00

Student Union (SU - bldg#35) Lobby/1ST Floor Renovations – 
Architect & Engineering Professional Service Fees
Contact: Don.Herr@tcc.fl.edu  , 850-201-6168

Change Order#1 - Increasing PO by $30,835.00 for Additional 
Services #1 & #2. 
New PO total is $233,805.00.

Bill To:

Tallahassee Community College
ATTN:  Accounts Payable
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304-2895
United States of America
(850) 201-8525

Currency Total Lines Amount Total Tax Amount Total PO Amount
USD 242,735.00 0.00 242,735.00



Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America
Federal ID: 59-1141270
Tax Exemption ID: 85-80-125307-72C8

Change Order

Purchase Order Number PO-014007 - 2

Purchase Order Date 07/09/2021

Payment Terms Net 30

Requestor Cindy Wommack

Phone Number (850) 201-6200

 

Page 2 of 2

Service Lines

Line Number Item Name Description Start Date End Date Due Date Amount

1  For the full architectural/
engineering (A/E) services 
from advanced schematic 
design through construction 
administration services 
for the proposed renovation 
to a portion of the 1st floor/
Lobby in the existing 
Student Union building#35. 
The scope of work for the 
subject project includes 
developing the previously 
approved preliminary 
schematic design through 
advanced schematic 
design, design 
development, construction 
documents, permit 
submittal and construction 
administration services. 
Specifics per attached 
proposal dated June 29, 
2021.  
**REF: TCC RFQ 2020-02 
Recommendation for 
Architectural Services; 
Approved at 2/17/20 BOT 
Meeting**

   242,735.00

Messages
Tallahassee Community College does not discriminate against any person on the basis of age, color, disability, ethnicity, gender identity, genetic information, 
marital status, national origin, pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, or veteran status in its programs and activities

VERIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT: In accordance with State of Florida Office of the Governor Executive Order Number 11-02, the firm shall utilize the U.S. 
Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all persons employed during the contract term by the firm to perform 
employment duties within Florida and all persons (including sub-consultants) assigned by the firm to perform work pursuant to the contract with Tallahassee 
Community College.

Please send all Invoices to Accounts Payable -  "AcctPay@tcc.fl.edu"
To ensure timely payments, TCC requires the College's purchase order number to be included on all invoices submitted for payment.

Any questions related to payment of supplier invoices should be directed to the TCC Accounts Payable Office at (850) 201-8565.



Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 21108_1121 Invoice date 12/01/2021

Page 1

Invoice total 29,500.00

21108_1121 12/01/2021 29,500.00 29,500.00

Total 29,500.00 29,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aging Summary

Invoice Number Invoice Date Outstanding Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Over 120

We appreciate your business. Please remit payment at your earliest convenience to: DAG Architects Inc., 1223 Airport Road, Destin, 
FL 32541.  If you have any questions, please contact Gail at 850.337.6443 or gennis@dagarchitects.com.

Architectural Fees 47,680.00 15.31 6,800.00 7,300.00 500.00

KH / EGS Geotechnical & Geophysical Services 64,200.00 45.17 0.00 29,000.00 29,000.00

KH Construction Phase Services 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

KH NWFWMD Permitting 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

KH Surveying Work 9,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

KH Construction Plans 60,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 206,080.00 17.61 6,800.00 36,300.00 29,500.00

Description
Contract

Amount

Percent

Complete

Prior

Billed

Total

Billed

Current

Billed

Professional Architectural Services

PHASE 1 - Site 6

PO-014436

Tallahassee Community College
Don Herr
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304

Invoice number 21108_1121
Date 12/01/2021

Project 21108  TCC WEI INFRASTRUCTURE 
EXTENSION



Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 21114_1121 Invoice date 12/01/2021

Page 1

Invoice total 1,825.00

21114_1121 12/01/2021 1,825.00 1,825.00

Total 1,825.00 1,825.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aging Summary

Invoice Number Invoice Date Outstanding Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Over 120

We appreciate your business. Please remit payment at your earliest convenience to: DAG Architects Inc., 1223 Airport Road, Destin, 
FL 32541.  If you have any questions, please contact Gail at 850.337.6443 or gennis@dagarchitects.com.

Task 7 - Conclusion 1,815.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task 6 - Master Plan & Graphics 30,825.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task 5 - Decision Themes 16,985.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task 4 - Planning Elements 86,328.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task 3 - Existing Conditions 41,890.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task 2 - Executive Summary 59,130.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task 1 - Overview 1,825.00 100.00 0.00 1,825.00 1,825.00

Total 238,798.00 0.76 0.00 1,825.00 1,825.00

Description
Contract

Amount

Percent

Complete

Prior

Billed

Total

Billed

Current

Billed

Professional Architectural Services

PO-014772

Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304

Invoice number 21114_1121
Date 12/01/2021

Project 21114  FPSI MASTERPLANNING



Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 210208_1121 Invoice date 11/30/2021

Page 1 of 2

Conversion of the Outdoor Storage Room 248-H2 
Eng

5,900.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Conversion of the Outdoor Storage Room 248-
FCG

15,440.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Additional Services

Construction Administration - Kever McKee 600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Post Test and Balance - H2 Eng 5,700.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Pre Test and Balance - H2 Eng 5,700.00 100.00 5,700.00 5,700.00 0.00

Record Documents - H2 Eng 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hydrant Flow Test-H2 Eng 600.00 100.00 600.00 600.00 0.00

Construction Administration - H2 Eng 6,150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Construction Administration - FCG 18,081.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Bidding - H2 Engineering 2,050.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Bidding - FCG 11,125.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Agency Permitting - FCG 8,234.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Permit Docs - Kever McKee 1,083.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Permit Docs - H2 Engineering 8,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Permit Docs - FCG 13,253.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

90% Construction Documents-Kever McKee 1,084.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

90% Construction Documents - H2 Eng 12,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

90% Construction Documents - FCG 20,638.00 55.00 0.00 11,350.90 11,350.90

Design Development - Kever McKee 1,083.00 100.00 1,083.00 1,083.00 0.00

Design Development - H2 Engineering 8,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Design Development - FCG 18,150.40 100.00 18,150.40 18,150.40 0.00

Schematic Design - Kever/McKee Eng 500.00 100.00 500.00 500.00 0.00

Schematic Design - H2 Engineering 4,100.00 100.00 4,100.00 4,100.00 0.00

Schematic Design - FCG 17,356.60 100.00 17,356.60 17,356.60 0.00

Programming - FCG 8,500.00 100.00 8,500.00 8,500.00 0.00

Measured Drawings - FCG 7,500.00 100.00 5,625.00 7,500.00 1,875.00

Subtotal 181,190.00 41.31 61,615.00 74,840.90 13,225.90

Basic Services

Description
Contract

Amount

Percent

Complete

Prior

Billed

Total

Billed

Current

Billed

FC

Professional Architectural Services

PO- 013757

Tallahassee Community College
Jenny Shuler
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304-2895

Invoice number 210208_1121
Date 11/30/2021

Project 210208  TCC - GHAZVINI NURSING 
SIMULATION AUDITIORIUM 
RENOVATION



Date 11/30/2021
Invoice number 210208_1121Tallahassee Community College

210208  TCC - GHAZVINI NURSING SIMULATION AUDITIORIUM RENOVATIONProject

Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 210208_1121 Invoice date 11/30/2021

Page 2 of 2

Invoice total 13,225.90

210208_1121 11/30/2021 13,225.90 13,225.90

Total 13,225.90 13,225.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aging Summary

Invoice Number Invoice Date Outstanding Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Over 120

We appreciate your business.  Please remit payment at your earliest convenience to 1201 W. Peachtree Street, Suite 630, Atlanta, GA 
30309.  If you have any questions please contact Judith 832.331.9418, or judith@fc-groupllc.com.

Subtotal 21,340.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 202,530.00 36.95 61,615.00 74,840.90 13,225.90

Description
Contract

Amount

Percent

Complete

Prior

Billed

Total

Billed

Current

Billed



Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 210224_1121 Invoice date 11/30/2021

Page 1 of 2

Invoice total 3,075.00

Independent Green Technologies (IGT Solar) 5,400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Programming 7,500.00 25.00 0.00 1,875.00 1,875.00

Measured Drawings 2,400.00 50.00 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00

Subtotal 15,300.00 20.10 0.00 3,075.00 3,075.00

Additional Required Services

Construction Administration-H2 Engineering 2,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Construction Administration-Kever McKee 750.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Construction Administration 9,260.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Bidding 4,440.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Permit Documents-H2 Engineering 4,400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Permit Documents-Kever McKee 562.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Permit Documents 3,363.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

90% Construction Documents-Kever McKee 750.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

90% Construction Documents 10,350.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Design Documents-H2 Engineering 4,400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Design Documents-Kever McKee 1,313.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Design Documents 3,722.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Schematic Design-Kever McKee 1,125.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Schematic Design 8,865.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Subtotal 55,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Basic Services

Total 70,800.00 4.34 0.00 3,075.00 3,075.00

Description
Contract

Amount

Percent

Complete

Prior

Billed

Total

Billed

Current

Billed

FC
1201 W. Peachtree Street
Suite 630
Atlanta, GA 30309
850.350.3500

Purchase Order # 014731

Tallahassee Community College
Jenny Shuler
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304-2895

Invoice number 210224_1121
Date 11/30/2021

Project 210224  TCC - GHAZVINI SOLAR PANELS 
PATIO



Date 11/30/2021
Invoice number 210224_1121Tallahassee Community College

210224  TCC - GHAZVINI SOLAR PANELS PATIOProject

Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 210224_1121 Invoice date 11/30/2021

Page 2 of 2

210224_1121 11/30/2021 3,075.00 3,075.00

Total 3,075.00 3,075.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aging Summary

Invoice Number Invoice Date Outstanding Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Over 120

We appreciate your business.  Please remit payment at your earliest convenience to 1201 W. Peachtree Street, Suite 630, Atlanta, GA 
30309.  If you have any questions please contact Judith 832.331.9418, or judith@fc-groupllc.com.



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Heather Mitchell                                                                                                                         

Vice President for Institutional Advancement and Executive Director of the TCC 
Foundation 

 Choose an item. 
SUBJECT: TCC Foundation Update 

 
 
Item Description 
The following is an update of the events planned and initiatives & activities undertaken by the 
TCC Foundation. 
 
Overview and Background 
Attached is a report of funds raised by the TCC Foundation to date for the current fiscal year.  
The report includes a summary of total funds received, giving summary by designated area, 
number of donors and number of gifts. 
 
The Foundation would also like to extend an invitation to DBOT members to the following 
events: 
January 25 – President’s Circle Dinner, Wayne & Betty Edwards Baseball Field House, 6:00 
p.m. 
February 4 – Heroes in Public Safety Banquet, University Center Club, 6:00 p.m. 
February 5 – Public Safety Day, Florida Public Safety Institute, 12:00 – 4:00 p.m. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The District Board of Trustees receives a Foundation update at every Board Meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
There are no Funding/Financial implications arising from this standard monthly report. 
 
Recommended Action 
None required.  Report provided for information only. 

 



TCC Foundation - Financial Update FY 21/22

 July - December 9



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Calandra Stringer, Ph.D.                                                                                                                

Vice President and Provost 
   
SUBJECT: 2021-2022 Amended Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement with County 

School Boards and Public Charter Schools 
 
 
Item Description 
This item presents the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements between the College and 
each of the three school boards in the Tallahassee Community College service district for 
annual approval as required by Florida Law. This also includes agreements with the public 
charter schools in our service district. 
 
Overview and Background 
The dual enrollment agreement between the College and each of the three school boards and 
public charter schools in the Tallahassee Community College service district were originally 
approved during the August 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. Language was added to 
section XIV of each dual enrollment articulation agreement that public school districts and 
public charter schools will not be invoiced for required instructional materials during the 
summer term. The College will seek reimbursement for cost of instructional materials per the 
1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual Enrollment 
Scholarship Program.   
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Dual enrollment students pay no tuition, fees, lab, or online course fees. The school 
district does not pay the standard rate per credit hour, $71.98, for students taking courses 
on TCC’s campus. This also includes online courses. Moreover, the school districts pay 
the cost of the instructor if the course is taught at the high school site by a TCC instructor. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board approved these changes. 
 
Recommended Action 
The Board approves the articulation agreement. 

 



1 
 

2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Cross Road Academy and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Cross Road 
Academy, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall 
commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Cross Road Academy and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


4 
 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 



6 
 

Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


7 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


8 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



9 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2011 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



10 
 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


11 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 



12 
 

point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and 
Spring semester.  Textbooks will be provided by the College during the Summer June 
Express term.  Textbooks purchased by the School Board shall remain the property of the 
School Board as specified in Section 1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to 
reduce the cost of textbooks and materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA 
accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s 
campus will be covered by TCC.  The costs of ADA accommodations for dual 
enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 
covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 



13 
 

students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 
that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 
 



14 
 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Cross Road Academy, Florida and The 
District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
  Cross Road Academy School Board 
 

    
Date  Principal, Cross Road Academy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Florida State University School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Florida State 
University School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement 
shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Florida State University School 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


4 
 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 



6 
 

Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


7 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


8 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



9 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2011 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



10 
 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


11 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 



12 
 

point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and 
Spring semester.  Textbooks will be provided by the College during the Summer June 
Express term.  Textbooks purchased by the School Board shall remain the property of the 
School Board as specified in Section 1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to 
reduce the cost of textbooks and materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA 
accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s 
campus will be covered by TCC.  The costs of ADA accommodations for dual 
enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 
covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 



13 
 

students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 
that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 
 



14 
 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Florida State University School, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Florida State University School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Florida State University School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Gadsden County Schools and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Gadsden County, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Gadsden County and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


4 
 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 



6 
 

Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


7 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


8 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



9 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2011 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



10 
 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


11 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 



12 
 

point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and 
Spring semester.  Textbooks will be provided by the College during the Summer June 
Express term.  Textbooks purchased by the School Board shall remain the property of the 
School Board as specified in Section 1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to 
reduce the cost of textbooks and materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA 
accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s 
campus will be covered by TCC.  The costs of ADA accommodations for dual 
enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 
covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 



13 
 

students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 
that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 
 



14 
 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Gadsden County, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Gadsden County School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Gadsden County School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Leon County Schools and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Leon County, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Leon County and the President 
of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


4 
 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 



6 
 

Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


7 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


8 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



9 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2011 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



10 
 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


11 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 



12 
 

point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and 
Spring semester.  Textbooks will be provided by the College during the Summer June 
Express term.  Textbooks purchased by the School Board shall remain the property of the 
School Board as specified in Section 1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to 
reduce the cost of textbooks and materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA 
accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s 
campus will be covered by TCC.  The costs of ADA accommodations for dual 
enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 
covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 



13 
 

students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 
that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 
 



14 
 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Leon County, Florida and The District Board 
of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and caused it 
to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 
1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Leon County School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Leon County School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Wakulla County Schools and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Wakulla County, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Wakulla County and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4: Complete the Early Admission Form with your guidance counselor. 
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


4 
 

• Permission to register form 
• Early Admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
 

 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 



6 
 

Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


7 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


8 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



9 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2011 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



10 
 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


11 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 



12 
 

point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and 
Spring semester.  Textbooks will be provided by the College during the Summer June 
Express term.  Textbooks purchased by the School Board shall remain the property of the 
School Board as specified in Section 1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to 
reduce the cost of textbooks and materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA 
accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s 
campus will be covered by TCC.  The costs of ADA accommodations for dual 
enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 
covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 



13 
 

students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 
that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 
 



14 
 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Wakulla County, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Wakulla County School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Wakulla County School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Calandra Stringer, Ph.D.                                                                                                                

Vice President and Provost 
   
SUBJECT: 2021-2022 Amended Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement with Private 

Schools 
 
 
Item Description 
This item presents the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements between the College and 
each of the private schools in the Tallahassee Community College service district for annual 
approval as required by Florida Law.  
 
Overview and Background 
The dual enrollment agreement between the College and each of the private schools in the 
Tallahassee Community College service district were originally approved during the August 
2021 Board of Trustees meeting. Language was added to section XIV of each dual 
enrollment articulation agreement that private schools will not be invoiced for tuition and fees, 
lab or online. Private schools will also not be charged for required instructional materials. The 
College will seek reimbursement for instructional costs and materials per the 1009.30, F.S. 
and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual Enrollment Scholarship 
Program.   
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Dual enrollment students pay no tuition, fees, lab, or online course fees. The private 
school does not pay the standard rate per credit hour, $71.98, for students taking courses 
on TCC’s campus. This also includes online courses. Moreover, the private schools pay 
for the cost of the instructor if the course is taught at the school site by a TCC instructor. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board approved these changes. 
 
Recommended Action 
The Board approves the articulation agreement. 

 



1 
 

2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Community Christian School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Community 
Christian School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement 
shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Community Christian School 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


4 
 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 



6 
 

Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


7 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


8 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



9 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2011 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



10 
 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


11 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 



12 
 

point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 
 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.  
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   
TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 



13 
 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 



14 
 

providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Community Christian School, Florida and The 
District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Community Christian School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Community Christian School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Community Leadership Academy and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Community 
Leadership Academy, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this 
agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Community Leadership 
Academy and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


4 
 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 



6 
 

Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


7 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


8 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



9 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2011 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



10 
 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


11 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 



12 
 

point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.  
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   
TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 



13 
 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 
 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 



14 
 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Community Leadership Academy, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Community Leadership Academy Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Community Leadership Academy District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

John Paul II Catholic School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of John Paul II 
Catholic School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement 
shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of John Paul II Catholic School 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


4 
 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 



6 
 

Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


7 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


8 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



9 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2011 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



10 
 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


11 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 



12 
 

point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.  
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   
TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 



13 
 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 
 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 



14 
 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of John Paul II Catholic School, Florida and The 
District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, John Paul II Catholic School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, John Paul II Catholic School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Maclay School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Maclay School, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Maclay School and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


4 
 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 



6 
 

Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


7 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


8 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



9 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2011 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



10 
 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


11 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 



12 
 

point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.  
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   
TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 



13 
 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 
 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 



14 
 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Maclay School, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Maclay School Board 

 

    
Date  Principal (Headmaster), Maclay School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

North Florida Christian School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of North Florida 
Christian School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement 
shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of North Florida Christian School 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


4 
 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 



6 
 

Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


7 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


8 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



9 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2011 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



10 
 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


11 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 



12 
 

point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.  
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   
TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 



13 
 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 
 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 



14 
 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of North Florida Christian School, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, North Florida Christian School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, North Florida Christian School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Providence Christian Academy and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Providence 
Christian Academy, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement 
shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Providence Christian Academy 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


4 
 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 



6 
 

Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


7 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


8 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



9 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2011 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



10 
 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


11 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 



12 
 

point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.  
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   
TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 



13 
 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 
 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 



14 
 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Providence Christian Academy, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Providence Christian Academy Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Providence Christian Academy District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Robert F. Munroe High School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Robert F. Munroe 
High School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall 
commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Robert F. Munroe High School 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


4 
 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 



6 
 

Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


7 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


8 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



9 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2011 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



10 
 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


11 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 



12 
 

point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.  
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   
TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 



13 
 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 
 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 



14 
 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Robert F. Munroe High School, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Robert F. Munroe High School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Robert F. Munroe High School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Savary Academy and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Savary Academy, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Savary Academy and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


4 
 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 



6 
 

Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


7 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


8 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



9 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2011 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



10 
 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


11 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 



12 
 

point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.  
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   
TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 



13 
 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 
 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 



14 
 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Savary Academy, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
  Savary Academy School Board 
 

    
Date  Principal, Savary Academy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Tree of Life School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction  
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Tree of Life School, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Tree of Life School and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


4 
 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 



6 
 

Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or Statewide 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to Statewide in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade 
Statewide or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into 
college-level Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual 
enrollment program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade Statewide or 
Florida Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English 
and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


7 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


8 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



9 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2011 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



10 
 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


11 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 



12 
 

point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.  
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   
TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 



13 
 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 
 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 



14 
 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Tree of Life School, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tree of Life School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Tree of Life School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Wakulla Christian School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Wakulla Christian 
School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall 
commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Wakulla Christian School and 
the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


4 
 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 



6 
 

Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


7 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


8 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



9 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2011 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



10 
 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


11 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 



12 
 

point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.  
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   
TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 



13 
 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2021-22 academic year.   

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 
 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 



14 
 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Wakulla Christian School, Florida and The 
District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Wakulla Christian School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Wakulla Christian School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Calandra Stringer, Ph.D.     

Vice President and Provost 

SUBJECT: Gadsden Technical Institute and Tallahassee Community College MOU 

Item Description 
This item presents an agreement between Gadsden Technical Institute (GTI) and 
Tallahassee Community College (TCC) to enhance partnerships and career pathways. 

Overview and Background 
The agreement provides for a greater exchange of data and the development of seamless 
career pathways for students completing courses and programs at GTI. It will assist students 
matriculating into TCC and minimize duplication of courses and programs. 

Funding/ Financial Implications 
None 

Past Actions by the Board 
The Board has approved agreements with Gadsden Technical Institute in the past. 

Recommended Action 
The Board approve the agreement with Gadsden Technical Institute. 











444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Calandra Stringer, Ph.D.     

Vice President and Provost 

SUBJECT: Lively Technical College and Tallahassee Community College MOU 

Item Description 
This item presents an agreement between Lively Technical College (LTC) and Tallahassee 
Community College (TCC) to enhance partnerships and career pathways.  

Overview and Background 
The agreement provides for a greater exchange of data and the development of seamless 
career pathways for students completing courses and programs at LTC. It will assist students 
matriculating into TCC and minimize duplication of courses and programs. 

Funding/ Financial Implications 
None 

Past Actions by the Board 
The Board has approved agreements with Lively Technical College in the past. 

Recommended Action 
The Board approve the agreement with Lively Technical College. 







444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.     

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

SUBJECT: Policy Manual Changes 

Item Description 
This item requests Board approval of Policy Manual changes in chapters 1.0 – Policy 
Development Process, 2.0 – Organizational Structure, 3.0 – General Administration, 4.0 - All 
Personnel, 6.0 – Classified Staff, Managerial Professional and Contract-Grant Employees, 
9.0 – Business Services, 10.0 – Students, 11.0 – Facilities and 12.0 – Safety and Security. 

Overview and Background 
In the summer of 2020, the College embarked on a process to update and revise all TCC 
policies. The purpose of this project was to update policies to ensure they meet all legal 
requirements, implement known best practices, clearly communicate expectations and 
requirements, and that they reflect the unique needs of TCC.  On November 15, 2021, in a 
workshop, the Board was presented the first of three sets of policy revisions for their review. 
This section of policies includes the following chapters:  Governance, Property and 
Operations.  These policies are now being presented to the board for approval.   

These changes are outlined in the link provided below. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/about/college/district-board-of-trustees/college-policies/policy-
revisions/  

Funding/ Financial Implications 
N/A. 

Past Actions by the Board 
This is the first of three sections of policy revisions being brought to the Board for a vote.  
These policy revisions were first presented to the board in a workshop in November, 2021. 

Recommended Action 
Approve revision of College policies as presented. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/about/college/district-board-of-trustees/college-policies/policy-revisions/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/about/college/district-board-of-trustees/college-policies/policy-revisions/


This page is intentionally blank.



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.     

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
______________________ 

SUBJECT: Fund Analysis - December 

Item Description 
This item is to provide the Board a summary of the College’s operating revenues and 
expenses as of 12/13/2021. 

Overview and Background 
As directed in the Florida Public Community College Accounting Manual, revenues from state 
appropriations, student tuition and fees, interest earned, and other contributions are recorded 
and monitored in the College’s operating fund (fund 1).  Expenditures for direct instruction 
expenses are also recorded in the operating fund. 

In accordance with Florida Statutes (1011.01), the Board of Trustees must approve the 
College’s operating fund budget each fiscal year. The College monitors the operating fund 
activity to ensure approved budget limits are maintained. Additionally, the Board has 
requested a report of all purchases over $100,000, but less than $325,000. The report for the 
month of January is attached to this item. 

Past Actions by the Board 
For information only, no Board action required. 

Funding/ Financial Implications  
The College continues to be in sound financial condition. 

Recommended Action 
For information only, no Board action required. 



REVENUE December Month YTD YTD Annual % of YTD 
Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget Budget

Student Fees 243,669$               1,933,506$            16,544,869$          11,601,039$          23,202,077$          71%
State Support 2,512,565              2,981,647              12,575,971            17,889,880            35,779,760            35%
Federal Support 248,126                 83,333                   1,753,269              500,000                 1,000,000              175%
Other Revenue 232,527                 105,680                 1,014,317              634,082                 1,268,163              80%
Non-Revenue Sources -                         83,333                   -                         500,000                 1,000,000              0%

TOTAL REVENUE 3,236,887              5,187,500              31,888,426            31,125,000            62,250,000            51%

EXPENSES December Month YTD YTD Annual % of YTD 
Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget Expenses

PERSONNEL COSTS
Administrative 274,403                 274,414                 1,771,464              1,646,484              3,292,968              54%
Instructional 1,043,998              1,203,263              6,274,928              7,219,580              14,439,160            43%
Non-Instructional 1,209,888              1,213,858              7,861,393              7,283,151              14,566,301            54%
OPS 598,695                 507,279                 3,094,183              3,043,677              6,087,354              51%
Personnel Benefits 845,952                 884,518                 5,048,064              5,307,108              10,614,217            48%

TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 3,972,936              4,083,333              24,050,032            24,500,000            49,000,000            49%

CURRENT EXPENSES
Services 182,307                 358,027                 1,733,430              2,148,161              4,296,322              40%
Material & Supplies 120,160                 209,348                 779,022                 1,256,090              2,512,180              31%
Other Current Charges 122,619                 515,958                 2,854,964              3,095,749              6,191,498              46%

TOTAL CURRENT EXPENSES 425,086                 1,083,333              5,367,416              6,500,000              13,000,000            41%

CAPITAL OUTLAY -                         20,833                   51,661                   125,000                 250,000                 21%

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,398,022$            5,187,500$            29,469,109$          31,125,000$          62,250,000$          47%

Tallahassee Community College Fund Analysis
Unrestricted Current Fund
As of December 10, 2021



Purchase 
Order

Purchase 
Order Date Supplier

Total PO 
Amount Description Approval/Exemption

PO-014657 11/1/2021 Lumen Learning 166,000.00 Supported enrollment in Candela 
and Online Homework Manager

FAC 6A-14.0734 Exemption (2) (a) Educational 
tests, textbooks, printed instructional materials 
and equipment, films, filmstrips, video tapes, disc 
or tape recordings or similar audio-visual 
materials, and graphic or computer-based 
instructional software.

PO-014666 11/3/2021 Clarity Activation Partners 110,000.00 Advertising and promotional benefits 
with with Clarity Activation Partners

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734(2)(e) - Services or 
commodities available only from a single or sole 
source.

PO-014667 11/3/2021 Miami Heat Limited Partnership 175,000.00 Advertising and promotional benefits 
with Miami Heat

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734(2)(e) - Services or 
commodities available only from a single or sole 
source.

PO-014668 11/3/2021 Florioda Panthers Hockey Club 
LTD 175,000.00 Advertising and promotional benefits 

with Florida Panthers Hockey Club

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734(2)(e) - Services or 
commodities available only from a single or sole 
source.

PO-014669 11/3/2021 Fox Sports Net Florida, Inc. 200,000.00 Advertising and promotional benefits 
with Fox Sports Florida/Sun Sports

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734(2)(e) - Services or 
commodities available only from a single or sole 
source.

PO-014670 11/3/2021 Miami Dolphins LTD 175,000.00 Advertising and promotional benefits 
with Miami Dolphins

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734(2)(e) - Services or 
commodities available only from a single or sole 
source.

PO-014678 11/3/2021 Jacksonville Jaguars LLC 178,250.00 Advertising and promotional benefits 
with Jacksonville Jaguars

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734(2)(e) - Services or 
commodities available only from a single or sole 
source.

Issued in November & December 2021

Purchase Orders from $100,000 to $324,999 +



Purchase 
Order

Purchase 
Order Date Supplier

Total PO 
Amount Description Approval/Exemption

PO-014685 11/8/2021 VSG Enterprises LLC 225,000.00 Advertising and promotional benefits 
with Vinik Sports Group

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734(2)(e) - Services or 
commodities available only from a single or sole 
source.

PO-014718 11/9/2021 Marlins Stadium Operator LLC 175,000.00 Advertising and promotional benefits 
with Marlins Stadium

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734(2)(e) - Services or 
commodities available only from a single or sole 
source.

PO-014722 11/10/2021 Architects: Lewis + Whilock, 
PA 147,944.00

Provide professional services for the 
design and documentation for 
improvements at buildings 20, 23 
and 34 complex.

TCC RFQ 2020-02 Recommendation for 
Architectural Services; Approved at 2/17/20 DBOT 
meeting.

PO-014732 11/15/2021 Legends Sales & Marketing 
LLC 120,000.00 Advertising and promotional benefits 

with Legends Sales and Marketing

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734(2)(e) - Services or 
commodities available only from a single or sole 
source.

PO-014772 12/1/2021 DAG Architects Inc. 238,798.00

Provide architectural and civil 
engineering services to develop 
master planning update for TCC's 
Florida Public Safety Institute.

TCC RFQ 2020-02 Recommendation for 
Architectural Services; Approved at 2/17/20 DBOT 
meeting.

PO-014800 12/8/2021 Patterson Dental Supply Inc. 309,310.63 Medical equipment for student health 
care training. 

Competitive bid via E&I's Cooperative Services 
solication process, contract EI-00077.

Purchase Orders from $100,000 to $324,999 +
Issued November & December 2021 (Continued)



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.     

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

SUBJECT: Annual SREF Fire, Sanitation and Casualty Inspection 

Item Description 
This item requests approval of the annual SREF Fire, Sanitation and Casualty Inspection 
reports. 

Overview and Background 
The State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and Florida Statutes mandate that 
the College perform annual safety inspections for all TCC sites and facilities. During the 
current FY 2021/22 the following deficiencies were noted for each site. 

Main Campus had six minor deficiencies in the Fire and Life Safety category and one 
deficiency in the Casualty section.  All deficiencies have been resolved.   

Florida Public Safety Institute had one minor deficiency noted in the Fire section which has 
been resolved. 

TCC Satellites had five minor Fire and Life Safety deficiencies. Two at the Ghazvini Center 
for Healthcare Education, three at the Center for Innovation and all have been resolved. 

Funding/ Financial Implications  
All costs incurred to correct deficiencies are funded from the Facilities operating budget and 
Capital Improvement fees as needed. 

Past Actions by the Board 
The District Board of Trustees last approved the annual SREF report at the January 11, 2021 
meeting. 

Recommended Action 
Approve the annual SREF Fire, Sanitation and Casualty Inspection reports in accordance 
with Florida Statutes. 



This page is intentionally blank.



College Facility:

SCHOOL / FACILITY: Main Campus & Off Site Facilities # OF SERIOUS FIRE SAFETY VIOLATIONS _0__

ADDRESS: 444 Appleyard Drive, Tallahassee, FL  32304 

# OF NON-SERIOUS FIRE SAFETY VIOLATIONS _6_

Jeb W. Bynum (Municipal Fire Safety Inspector) October 19, 2021
FIRE DISTRICT FIRE SAFETY INSPECTOR NAME PRINTED (IF JOINT INSPECTION) COLLEGE BOARD FIRESAFETY INSPECTOR NAME PRINTED INSPECTION DATE

Fire Prevention Specialists, Inc., 609 Gina Lane, Melbourne, FL  32940   321-757-7205
FIRE DISTRICT FIRE SAFETY INSPECTOR SIGNATURE (IF JOINT INSPECTION) INSPECTOR ADDRESS & PHONE NUMBER

10/25/2021

SIGNATURE DATE   FIRE INSPECTOR CERTIFICATION NUMBER COLLEGE BOARD FIRE SAFETY INSPECTOR SIGNATURE / DATE  FIRE INSPECTOR CERTIFICATION NUMBER

LOCATION:
Deficiency locations will be identified by a building number followed by the room number (e.g. 2-505 or 1-133A).  These numbers are usually the F.I.S.H. numbers

affixed above the door leading into that particular room.  Or if the deficiency in an area other than an identifiable room number, the area in question will be

specifically identified.  For example:  Pressbox, Field House, Pavillion, etc.

Tallahassee Community College has met the requirements of F.S.S. 1013.12(2)(d): _X_ YES   ___ NO

Approval of Reports by Board (Including Letter) ___YES ___NO

THE UNDERSIGNED ATTESTS TO THE REVIEW OF THIS REPORT IN ITS ENTIRETY AND ACKNOWLEDGES AWARENESS OF THE DISCOVERED

DEFICIENCIES.

FACILITY ADMINISTRATOR NAME PRINTED FACILITY ADMINISTRATOR SIGNATURE

FACILITY ADMINISTRATOR TITLE SIGNATURE DATE

133209

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE SAFETY INSPECTION REPORT

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

ADMINISTRATIVE RULE - SREF 2014 & F.A.C. 69A-58

FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022

Tallahassee Community College FIRE DISTRICT: Tallahassee



SREF 2021/2022 Fire Safety Deficiencies - Tallahassee Main Campus & Off Site Facilities

Location, Deficiency Description 

JB 01 Building: No deficiencies noted 1

JB 02 Building: No deficiencies noted 2

JB 03 Building: No deficiencies noted 3

JB 04-Building: No deficiencies noted 4

JB 05-Building: No deficiencies noted 5

JB 06 Building: No deficiencies noted 6

JB 08 Building: No deficiencies noted 7

JB 09 Building: No deficiencies noted 8

JB 11-Building: No deficiencies noted - north / south 9

NFPA 80, 20.9.1 JB 12-Stage: Fire curtain rigging inspection to be performed every year by qualifies person.  See also ANSI E1.47 for rigging inspections 0 1-15-21 10-28-2021 10

FFPC 1, 4.5.8.1 JB 12-120: Smoke doors need adjusted 0 12-15-21 10-28-2021 11

FFPC 1, 4.5.8.1 JB 12-234: Smoke doors need adjusted 0 12-15-21 10-28-2021 12

FFPC 1, 4.5.8.1 JB 12-Theater: Rated door needs adjusted - east exit corridor off main seating 0 12-15-21 10-28-2021 13

JB 15 Building: No deficiencies noted 14

JB 16 Building: No deficiencies noted - storage 15

JB 17 Building: No deficiencies noted 16

JB 18 Building: No deificiencies noted 17

JB 19 Building: No deficiencies noted 18

JB 20 Building: No deficiencies noted 19

JB 21 Building: No deficiencies noted 20

JB 22 Building: No deficiencies noted - leased 21

JB 23 Building: No deficiencies noted 22

JB 27 Building: No deficiencies noted 23

JB 28 Building: No deficiencies noted 24

JB 30 Building: No deficiencies noted 25

JB 31 Building: No deficiencies noted - truck school 26

JB 32 Building: No deficiencies noted 27

JB 33 Building: No deficiencies noted 28

JB 34 Building: No deficiencies noted 29

JB 35 building: No deficiencies noted 30

Line 

No.
CODE NUMBER

Insp. 

Initials

Prior 

Times 

Cited

Deficiency 

Corrected 

By

Date 

Deficiency 

Corrected



SREF 2021/2022 Fire Safety Deficiencies - Tallahassee Main Campus & Off Site Facilities

Location, Deficiency Description 

JB 36-Building: No deficiencies noted 31

JB 37 Building: No deficiencies noted 32

JB 38-Building: No deficiencies noted 33

JB 39-Building: No deficiencies noted 34

JB 41-Building: No deficiencies noted 35

JB 42 Building: No deficiencies noted 36

JB 43 Building: No deficiencies noted - leased 37

JB 44-Building: No deficiencies noted - storage 38

JB 45-Building: No deficiencies noted - leased 39

JB 46-Building: No deficiencies noted - leased 40

JB 47-Building: No deficiencies noted - leased 41

JB 48-Building: No deficiencies noted 42

JB 49-Building: No deficiencies noted - not occupied - demo scheduled 43

JB 50-Building: No deficiencies noted 44

JB 52-Building: No deficiencies noted - leased 45

JB 53-Building: No deficiencies noted - leased 46

JB 54-Building: No deficiencies noted - facilities / maintenance 47

JB 55-Building: No deficiencies noted - paint / welding 48

JB 56-Building: No deficiencies noted - storage 49

JB 57-Building: No deficiencies noted 50

JB 58-Building: No deficiencies noted - potting shop 51

JB 56-Building: No deficiencies noted 52

JB 57-Building: No deficiencies noted 53

JB 58-Building: No deficiencies noted 54

FFPC 1, 4.5.8.1 JB General: Ceiling tiles and ceiling hatches need maintained campus wide 0 12-15-21 10-29-2021 55

56

57

FFPC 1, 50.5.4 JB Note: Bldg 35-107: Hood cleaning certitfications not present - vendor contacting company  0 12-15-21 10-29-2021 58

59

60

Deficiency 

Corrected 

By

Line 

No.
CODE NUMBER

Prior 

Times 

Cited

Insp. 

Initials

Date 

Deficiency 

Corrected



SREF 2021/2022 Casualty/Sanitation Deficiencies - Tallahassee Main Campus & Off Site 

Facilities

Location, Deficiency Description 

5(9)(d) JB 23: Loose VCT floor tiles - present trip hazard 0 12-15-21 11-03-2021 1

Deficiency 

Corrected 

By

Line 

Number

CODE NUMBER 

SREF Ch. 5

Prior 

Times 

Cited

Insp. 

Initials

Date 

Deficiency 

Corrected



College Facility:

SCHOOL / FACILITY: Satellite Facilities and Leased Facilities # OF SERIOUS FIRE SAFETY VIOLATIONS _0__

ADDRESS: 444 Appleyard Drive, Tallahassee, FL  32304 

# OF NON-SERIOUS FIRE SAFETY VIOLATIONS _5_

Jeb W. Bynum (Municipal Fire Safety Inspector) October 18, 2021
FIRE DISTRICT FIRE SAFETY INSPECTOR NAME PRINTED (IF JOINT INSPECTION) SCHOOL BOARD FIRESAFETY INSPECTOR NAME PRINTED INSPECTION DATE

Fire Prevention Specialists, Inc., 609 Gina Lane, Melbourne, FL  32940   321-757-7205
FIRE DISTRICT FIRE SAFETY INSPECTOR SIGNATURE (IF JOINT INSPECTION) INSPECTOR ADDRESS & PHONE NUMBER

12/25/2021

SIGNATURE DATE   FIRE INSPECTOR CERTIFICATION NUMBER COMM. COLLEGE BOARD FIRE SAFETY INSPECTOR SIGNATURE / DATE  FIRE INSPECTOR CERTIFICATION NUMBER

LOCATION:
Deficiency locations will be identified by a building number followed by the room number (e.g. 2-505 or 1-133A).  These numbers are 

affixed above the door leading into that particular room.  Or if the deficiency in an area other than an identifiable room number, the area in question will be

specifically identified.  For example:  Pressbox, Field House, Pavillion, etc.

Tallahassee Community College has met the requirements of F.S.S. 1013.12(2)(d): _X_ YES   ___ NO

Approval of Reports by Board (Including Letter) ___YES ___NO

THE UNDERSIGNED ATTESTS TO THE REVIEW OF THIS REPORT IN ITS ENTIRETY AND ACKNOWLEDGES AWARENESS OF THE DISCOVERED

DEFICIENCIES.

FACILITY ADMINISTRATOR NAME PRINTED FACILITY ADMINISTRATOR SIGNATURE

FACILITY ADMINISTRATOR TITLE SIGNATURE DATE

133209

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE SAFETY INSPECTION REPORT

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

ADMINISTRATIVE RULE - SREF 2014 & F.A.C. 69A-58

FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022

Tallahassee Community College FIRE DISTRICT: Various



SREF 2021/2022 Fire Safety Deficiencies - TCC Satellite & Leased Facilities

Location, Deficiency Description 

Brogan Museum: No deficiencies noted 1

JB Note: 2nd and 3rd floor under renovations - open ceiling tiles and work observed 2

FFPC 1, 4.5.8.1 JB 104D : Fire pump with red tag - recalled sprinklers per report 0 12-15-21 parts on orde 3

FFPC 1, 4.5.8.1 JB Frieght Elevator: No communications 0 12-15-21 11-08-2021 4

FFPC 1, 4.5.8.1 JB 116: FACP in trouble x3 0 12-15-21 parts on orde 5

6

JB Gadsden Center: No deficiencies noted 7

8

Ghazvini Center 9

FFPC 1, 4.5.8.1 JB FACP: Trouble on panel x2 0 12-15-21 parts on orde 10

FFPC 1, 4.5.8.1 JB Elevator 2: No communications 0 12-15-21 00-08-2021 11

12

Wakulla Center 13

JB No deficiencies noted 14

15

Wakulla Environmental Institute 16

JB No deficiencies noted 17

Deficiency 

Corrected 

By

Line 

No.
CODE NUMBER

Prior 

Times 

Cited

Insp. 

Initials

Date 

Deficiency 

Corrected



SREF 2021/2022 Casualty/Sanitation Deficiencies - TCC Satellite & Leased Facilities

Location, Deficiency Description 

JB Brogan Museum: No deficiencies noted 1

2

Gahzvini Center 3

JB No deficiencies noted 4

5

JB Gadsden Center: No deficiencies noted 6

7

JB Wakulla Environmental Institute: No deficiencies noted 8

Deficiency 

Corrected 

By

Line 

Number

CODE NUMBER 

SREF Ch. 5

Prior 

Times 

Cited

Insp. 

Initials

Date 

Deficiency 

Corrected



College Facility:

SCHOOL / FACILITY: TCC Florida Public Safety Institute # OF SERIOUS FIRE SAFETY VIOLATIONS _0__

ADDRESS: Hwy 90, Quincy, FL 32333

# OF NON-SERIOUS FIRE SAFETY VIOLATIONS _2_

Jeb W. Bynum  (Municipal Fire Safety Inspector) October 18, 2021
FIRE DISTRICT FIRE SAFETY INSPECTOR NAME PRINTED (IF JOINT INSPECTION) SCHOOL BOARD FIRESAFETY INSPECTOR NAME PRINTED INSPECTION DATE

Fire Prevention Specialists, Inc., 609 Gina Lane, Melbourne, FL  32940   321-757-7205
FIRE DISTRICT FIRE SAFETY INSPECTOR SIGNATURE (IF JOINT INSPECTION) INSPECTOR ADDRESS & PHONE NUMBER

10/25/2021

SIGNATURE DATE   FIRE INSPECTOR CERTIFICATION NUMBER COMM. COLLEGE BOARD FIRE SAFETY INSPECTOR SIGNATURE / DATE  FIRE INSPECTOR CERTIFICATION NUMBER

LOCATION:
Deficiency locations will be identified by a building number followed by the room number (e.g. 2-505 or 1-133A).  These numbers are usually the F.I.S.H. numbers

affixed above the door leading into that particular room.  Or if the deficiency in an area other than an identifiable room number, the area in question will be

specifically identified.  For example:  Pressbox, Field House, Pavillion, etc.

Tallahassee Community College has met the requirements of F.S.S. 1013.12(2)(d): _X_ YES   ___ NO

Approval of Reports by Board (Including Letter) ___YES ___NO

THE UNDERSIGNED ATTESTS TO THE REVIEW OF THIS REPORT IN ITS ENTIRETY AND ACKNOWLEDGES AWARENESS OF THE DISCOVERED

DEFICIENCIES.

FACILITY ADMINISTRATOR NAME PRINTED FACILITY ADMINISTRATOR SIGNATURE

FACILITY ADMINISTRATOR TITLE SIGNATURE DATE

133209

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE SAFETY INSPECTION REPORT

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

ADMINISTRATIVE RULE - SREF 2014 & F.A.C. 69A-58

FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022

Tallahassee Community College FIRE DISTRICT: Gadsden County



SREF 2021/2022 Fire Safety Deficiencies - Pat Thomas Law Enforcement Academy

Location, Deficiency Description 

Bldg.1 Def. Tactics 1

FFPC 1, 4.5.8.1 JB North Hall: FACP in trouble x1 0 12-15-21 11-1-2021 2

3

4

Bldg. 2 Range Bldg. 5

JB No deficiencies noted 6

7

Bldg. 3 Classroom Bldg. 8

JB No deficiencies noted 9

10

Bldg. 4 Administration 11

JB No deficiencies noted 12

13

Bldg. 5 Portable 14

JB No deficiencies noted 15

16

Bldg. 8 Cafeteria 17

JB No deficiencies noted 18

19

Bldg. 9 Dorm Annex 20

JB No deficiencies noted 21

22

Bldg. 10 South Dorm 23

JB No deficiencies noted 24

25

Bldg. 11 North Dorm 26

JB No deficiencies noted 27

28

Bldg. 12 Ammo Mechanical Storage 29

JB No deficiencies noted 30

Deficiency 

Corrected 

By

Line 

No.
CODE NUMBER

Prior 

Times 

Cited

Insp. 

Initials

Date 

Deficiency 

Corrected



SREF 2021/2022 Fire Safety Deficiencies - Pat Thomas Law Enforcement Academy

Location, Deficiency Description 

Bldg. 14 CSX Training 32

JB Building Removed from campus 33

34

New Dorm 35

JB No deficiencies noted 36

37

Conference Center 38

JB No deficiencies noted 39

40

Bldg. 32 Drivers Training Module 41

JB No deficiencies noted 42

Deficiency 

Corrected 

By

Line 

No.
CODE NUMBER

Prior 

Times 

Cited

Insp. 

Initials

Date 

Deficiency 

Corrected



SREF 2021/2022 Casualty/Sanitation Deficiencies - Pat Thomas Law Enforcement Academy

Location, Deficiency Description 

JB No deficiencies noted 1

Deficiency 

Corrected 

By

Line 

Number

CODE NUMBER 

SREF Ch. 5

Prior 

Times 

Cited

Insp. 

Initials

Date 

Deficiency 

Corrected



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
   
SUBJECT: RFQ 2022-02 Award Recommendation 

 
 
Item Description 
This item requests approval from the District Board of Trustees for the award to Mad Dog 
Construction, for Construction Manager at Risk services for the Student Union 1st Floor 
Renovations project. 
 
Overview and Background 
TCC recently discontinued the annual Pre-Qualification process of Construction Managers 
which now requires that a separate solicitation be conducted for construction manager at risk 
services for each new project that arises. This specific RFQ requests Construction Manager 
at Risk (CMAR) Services for the Student Union 1st Floor Renovations project, located in 
Building #35 on TCC’s Site 1 Main Campus.  
 
This RFQ 2022-02 was released to the public on October 5, 2021 via the TCC Purchasing 
Website and the State of Florida Vendor Bid System. The College received complete and 
acceptable submittals from the below four vendors on November 10, 2021 as a result of this 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ).  
 
CSI Contracting, Inc. 
Mad Dog Construction 
Rippee Construction, Inc. 
Southern Standard Construction LLC 
 
Based on the evaluation criteria outlined in the RFQ, the submittals were evaluated by a 
committee in two parts. Part one consisted of an initial review of submittals and scoring based 
on the evaluation criteria as outlined in the RFQ and the responses submitted. Part two of the 
evaluation process included an invitation to all four vendors for an in-person presentation and 
Q&A session.  
 
 



Based upon the qualifications submitted and the results of the two-part evaluation process, 
Mad Dog Construction is recommended for the award. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
This construction contract will be funded by the Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund – 
Institutional / HEERF I (CARES ACT), Federal Award Id Number: P425F200332. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
None 
 
Recommended Action 
Approve the recommended construction manager at risk, Mad Dog Construction, for the 
Student Union 1st Floor Renovations project. 
 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
   
SUBJECT: RFQ 2022-03 Award Recommendation 

 
 
Item Description 
This item requests approval from the District Board of Trustees for the award to Allstate 
Construction, Inc., for Construction Manager at Risk services for the TCC Ghazvini Center for 
Healthcare Education Nursing Simulation Lab Renovations project. 
 
Overview and Background 
TCC recently discontinued the annual Pre-Qualification process of Construction Managers 
which now requires that a separate solicitation be conducted for construction manager at risk 
services for each new project that arises. This specific RFQ requests Construction Manager 
at Risk (CMAR) Services for the TCC Ghazvini Center for Healthcare Education Nursing 
Simulation Lab Renovations project, located in the Ghazvini Center for Healthcare Education 
Building #1 on TCC’s Site 5 Campus.  
 
This RFQ 2022-03 was released to the public on October 5, 2021 via the TCC Purchasing 
Website and the State of Florida Vendor Bid System. The College received complete and 
acceptable submittals from the below four vendors on November 10, 2021 as a result of this 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ).  
 
Allstate Construction, Inc. 
CSI Contracting, Inc. 
Rippee Construction, Inc. 
Southern Standard Construction LLC 
 
Based on the evaluation criteria outlined in the RFQ, the submittals were evaluated by a 
committee in two parts. Part one consisted of an initial review of submittals and scoring based 
on the evaluation criteria as outlined in the RFQ and the responses submitted. Part two of the 
evaluation process included an invitation to all four vendors for an in-person presentation and 
Q&A session.  
 
 



Based upon the qualifications submitted and the results of the two-part evaluation process, 
Allstate Construction, Inc. is recommended for the award. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
This construction contract will be funded by the Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund – 
Institutional / HEERF I (CARES ACT), Federal Award Id Number: P425F200332. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
None 
 
Recommended Action 
Approve the recommended construction manager at risk, Allstate Construction, Inc., for the 
TCC Ghazvini Center for Healthcare Education Nursing Simulation Lab Renovations project. 
 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

January 18, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
   
SUBJECT: Construction Status Report 

 
 
Item Description 
This item describes the status of various construction, renovation, remodeling and site 
improvement projects at all TCC locations for the Board of Trustees. 
 
Overview and Background 
The attached Construction Status report details the noteworthy construction and renovation 
projects being undertaken to support the educational mission of the College. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
None. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
All construction and renovation projects are funded prior to approval, with most being funded 
from capital improvement fees. 
 
Recommended Action 
Presented as an information item only. 
 

 



CONSTRUCTION STATUS REPORT – AS OF DECEMBER & JANUARY 2021 
 
 
MAIN CAMPUS (SITE 1) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – AC 219 

100% TBD Complete 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – AC 220 

100% TBD Complete 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – AP 149 

100% TBD Complete 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – SM 119 

100% TBD Complete 

Facilities Room 
Renovation – TPP 211 

85% TBD Awaiting A/V 

Student Union Bldg#35 
1st Floor/Food Court 
Renovation 

15% TBD 
90% Plan Review with CMAR RFQ 
Awarded to Mad Dog Construction 

Administration Bldg#27 
Lobby 

25% TBD 
Ceiling work starting 12/14. Waterwall 
delivery expected by 12/17. 

Sidewalk Repairs, 
Elimination of Trip Hazards 

Continuous On-going 
Repaired 1,600 Trip Hazards and 
Replaced 38 sections of Sidewalk 

Elevator Upgrades at 
SMA Bldg#2  

10% TBD Upgrading electrical 

Elevator Upgrades at 
SU Bldg#35 

10% TBD Upgrading electrical 

SUSTAINABILITY % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

Hydration Stations Continuous On-going Prevented 195,500 Plastic Bottles from 
going to landfills 

Recycled Plastic 
Lumber/Furniture Continuous On-going Prevented 1,683,000 Plastic Bags from 

going to landfills 

CO2 Avoidance Continuous On-going 
Prevented 9,775 lbs. of CO2 from being 
released into the atmosphere 

GADSDEN SERVICE CENTER (SITE 2) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

None to report    

 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SAFETY INSTITUTE (SITE 3) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

Range Bldg#2 Roof 
Restoration 

10% TBD In progress 

Classroom Bldg#3 Vent 
Piping Replacement 

10% TBD In progress 

Dining Facility (IAQ) 10% TBD Indoor air quality 

CENTER FOR INNOVATION (SITE 4) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

CFI 2nd Floor Renovation 20% TBD 
100% Drawings with CMAR RFQ Awarded 
to Childers Construction 

GHAZVINI CENTER FOR HEALTHCARE EDUCATION (SITE 5) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

Ghazvini Simulator 
Expansion 

15% TBD 
90% Plan Review with CMAR RFQ 
Awarded to Allstate Construction 

WAKULLA ENVIRONMENTAL INSTITUTE (SITE 6) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

Master Plan 10% TBD In progress 

Infrastructure 10% TBD In progress 

FOUNDATION CLASSROOM RENOVATION SUMMARY 

Renovated Classroom(s) Cost to Date 
AC 212 - Classroom Renovations $      47,497.91 
AC 219 - Classroom Renovations $      43,765.95 
AC 220 - Classroom Renovations $      48,315.68 
AP 149 - Classroom Renovations $      35,023.68 
SM 118 - Classroom Renovations $      24,087.31 
SM 119 - Classroom Renovations $      35,121.12 


	Top
	1.	November Minutes
	Nov 2021  Minutes

	2.	Human Resource Report
	January Board Agenda 202
	Board Report Janauary 2021

	3.	Attorney Invoice
	Attorney Invoice
	Bryant Miller Olive Invoice 76851 $1800.00 November 2021

	4.	Sponsored Programs - Fiscal Agent - January 2022
	Sponsored Programs - Fiscal Agent -Jan 2022

	5.	Sponsored Programs - Provider - January 2022
	Sponsored Programs - Provider - Jan 2022

	6.	Architect Invoices
	Architect Memo Template_DEC2021-JAN2022
	BKJ_21.109 AR INVOICE_5_211116
	DAG Architects,_21108_TCC WEI Infrast_21108_1121_12-01-2021
	DAG Architects,_21114_FPSI Masterplan_21114_1121_12-01-2021
	FCG_210208_TCC - Ghazvini Nursing Sim_210208_1121_11-30-2021
	FCG_210224_TCC - Ghazvini Solar Panel_210224_1121_11-30-2021

	7.	TCC Foundation Update
	Update Memo
	Fundraising Info for DBOT Meeting 12-31-21 Final

	8.	2021-2022 Amended Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement with County School Boards and Public Charter Schools
	Public and Charter Schools_Academic Curriculum Changes
	Amended_2021-22_Cross Road Academy  TCC _ Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement
	Amended_2021-22_FSU School_TCC _ Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement
	Amended_2021-22_Gadsden  TCC _ Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement
	Amended_2021-22_Leon_TCC _ Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement
	Ammended_2021-22_Wakulla_TCC _ Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement

	9.	2021-2022 Amended Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement with Private Schools
	Private School_Ammendment_Academic Curriculum Changes
	Amended_2021-22_Community Christian School_TCC _ Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement
	Amended_2021-22_Community Leadership Academy_TCC _ Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement
	Amended_2021-22_John Paul II Catholic School_TCC _ Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement
	Amended_2021-22_Maclay School DE Articulation Agreement
	Amended_2021-22_North Florida Christian School_TCC _ Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement
	Amended_2021-22_Providence Christian Academy_TCC _ Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement
	Amended_2021-22_Robert F. Munroe High School_TCC _ Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement
	Amended_2021-22_Savary Academy  TCC _ Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement
	Amended_2021-22_Tree of Life School_TCC _ Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement
	Amended_2021-22_Wakulla Christian School_TCC _ Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement

	10.	Gadsden Technical Institute and Tallahassee Community College MOU
	Gadsden Technical Institute and Tallahassee Community College MOU
	Gadsden Technical College MOU

	11.	Lively Technical College and Tallahassee Community College MOU
	Lively Technical College and Tallahassee Community College MOU
	Lively Technical College MOU

	12.	Policy Manual Changes
	Board Agenda Memo_Policies

	13.	Fund Analysis - December
	Board Agenda Dec 2021 Fund Analysis
	Dec 2021 Fund Analysis
	Board Item- PO's-$100-324K +Jan 2022

	14.	Annual SREF Fire, Sanitation and Casualty Inspection
	Basic item memo template_Annual SREF Inspection Reports_FY21-22
	TCC Main Campus SREF 21-22 Inspection FINAL
	SREF 2021-2022 Fire Safety Deficiencies - TCC Satellite &amp; Leased Facilities FINAL
	TCC Public Safety SREF 21-22 Inspection FINAL

	15.	RFQ 2022-02 Award Recommendation
	Basic item memo template_RFQ 2022-02-CMAR Services-SU1stFlrRen

	16.	RFQ 2022-03 Award Recommendation
	Basic item memo template_RFQ 2022-03-CMAR Services-GCHE_NursingSimLab

	17.	Construction Status Report
	Construction Status Memo Template_JAN2022
	CONSTRUCTION STATUS REPORT_NewTemplate_DEC2021-JAN2022

	Bottom



